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Dear Petitioner: 

 

This is in reference to your application for correction of your naval record pursuant to Section 

1552 of Title 10, United States Code.  After careful and conscientious consideration of relevant 

portions of your naval record and your application, the Board for Correction of Naval Records 

(Board) found the evidence submitted insufficient to establish the existence of probable material 

error or injustice.  Consequently, your application has been denied.     

 

Although you did not file your application in a timely manner, the statute of limitation was 

waived in accordance with the 25 August 2017 guidance from the Office of the Under Secretary 

of Defense for Personnel and Readiness (Kurta Memo).  A three-member panel of the Board, 

sitting in executive session, considered your application on 6 November 2024.  The names and 

votes of the panel members will be furnished upon request.  Your allegations of error and 

injustice were reviewed in accordance with administrative regulations and procedures applicable 

to the proceedings of this Board.  Documentary material considered by the Board consisted of 

your application together with all material submitted in support thereof, relevant portions of your 

naval record, applicable statutes, regulations, and policies, to include the Kurta Memo, the 

3 September 2014 guidance from the Secretary of Defense regarding discharge upgrade requests 

by Veterans claiming post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD)/mental health condition (MHC) 

(Hagel Memo), and the 25 July 2018 guidance from the Under Secretary of Defense for 

Personnel and Readiness regarding equity, injustice, or clemency determinations (Wilkie 

Memo).  In addition, the Board considered an advisory opinion (AO) from a qualified mental 

health professional.  Although you were provided an opportunity to respond to the AO, you 

chose not to do so. 
 

You enlisted in the Navy and began a period of active duty on 12 February 1985.  On 27 April 

1986, you commenced a period of unauthorized absence due to confinement in  County 

jail, that ended with your surrender on 11 May 1986.  On 5 May 1987, you received 

administrative remarks regarding your inability to go to your appointed place of duty and your 

lack of progress toward making rank over the past two years.  On 18 July 1987, you commenced 

a period of unauthorized absence, during which you missed ship’s movement, that ended on 15 

August 1987.  You were found guilty at a special court-martial (SPCM), on 19 September 1987, 

for the 28 days UA and missing ship’s movement.  You were sentenced to confinement at hard 

labor for 45 days, reduction in rate, and forfeiture of pay.  Consequently, you were notified that 

you were being recommended for administrative discharge from the Navy by reason of 
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misconduct commission of a serious offense.  After you waived your rights, the Commanding 

Officer made his recommendation to the Separation Authority (SA) that you be discharged with 

an Other Than Honorable discharge.  The separation authority approved the recommendation, 

and on 17 June 1988, you were so discharged. 

 

The Board carefully considered all potentially mitigating factors to determine whether the 

interests of justice warrant relief in your case in accordance with the Wilkie Memo.  These 

included, but were not limited to, your desire to upgrade your discharge character of service and 

contentions that: (1) your previous naval review board decision needs to be reexamined due to 

your PTSD diagnosis, (2) you have been trying over 30 years to get your characterization 

upgraded, and (3) you were a proud Sailor and would like help with your PTSD.  For purposes of 

clemency and equity consideration, the Board considered the documentation you provided in 

support of your application. 

 

Because you content that a mental health condition impacted your misconduct, the Board 

considered the AO dated 13 September 2024.  The AO stated in pertinent part: 

 

There is no evidence that he was diagnosed with a mental health condition in 

military service, or that he exhibited any psychological symptoms or behavioral 

changes indicative of a diagnosable mental health condition.  Throughout his 

disciplinary processing, there were no concerns raised of a mental health condition 

that would have warranted a referral for evaluation.  Temporally remote to his 

military service, he has received treatment for a diagnosis of PTSD from VA 

providers.  Unfortunately, available records are not sufficiently detailed to establish 

clinical symptoms in service or provide a nexus with his misconduct, particularly 

given claims that he was innocent of the charges.  Additional records (e.g., post-

service mental health records describing the Petitioner’s diagnosis, symptoms, and 

their specific link to his misconduct) may aid in rendering an alternate opinion. 

  

The AO concluded, “it is my clinical opinion there is post-service evidence from VA providers 

of a diagnosis of PTSD that may be attributed to military service.  There is insufficient evidence 

to attribute his misconduct to PTSD.” 

 

After thorough review, the Board concluded your potentially mitigating factors were insufficient 

to warrant relief.  Specifically, the Board determined that your misconduct, as evidenced by your 

SPCM, outweighed these mitigating factors.  In making this finding, the Board considered the 

seriousness of your misconduct and found that your conduct showed a complete disregard for 

military authority and regulations.  The Board also considered the likely negative effect your 

misconduct had on the good order and discipline of your command.  Furthermore, the Board 

concurred with the AO that there is insufficient evidence that your misconduct could be 

attributed to PTSD.  As explained in the AO, there is no evidence that you were diagnosed with 

PTSD while in military service, or that you exhibited any symptoms of PTSD.  Therefore, the 

Board determined that the evidence of record did not demonstrate that you were not mentally 

responsible for your conduct or that you should not be held accountable for your actions.  

Finally, absent a material error or injustice, the Board declined to summarily upgrade a discharge 

solely for the purpose of facilitating veterans’ benefits or enhancing educational or employment 

opportunities. 






